Electrical Systems Engineering Services II (ESES II)

Solicitation Number NNG11375927R

Draft RFP QUESTIONS – Part 4


1. Reference Exhibit 15: What is the effective date of the incumbent labor rates in Exhibit 15 (e.g., October 2011 rates)? 
ANSWER: Incumbent labor rates are shown in Enclosure A; Exhibit 15 shows the labor category position descriptions. The effective date of the incumbent labor rates in Enclosure A is February 28, 2011. However, the Government will be updating the rates in the final RFP to make them current as of January 1, 2012 using incumbent-provided escalation anniversary dates and NASA-recommended escalation factors.
2. Reference L.18, DRFP pages 101-103: Will the Government allow offerors to cite classified programs for past performance? If so, please provide appropriate instructions for submittal of classified past performance citations.

ANSWER: Yes, offerors may cite classified programs for past performance.  The RFP will be revised to provide the appropriate instruction for submitting this information.
3. Section L.16.1, p. 90, indicates that Offerors must identify and discuss risk factors and discuss their approach to manage the risks. Within Section M, the only evaluation factors involving risk appear in M.3.1 Subfactor A – Representative Task Orders, as they relate to showing full understanding of risks and possible problem mitigation/resolution. 

Please clarify how the Government will evaluate the offeror’s ability to identify risks and the offeror’s approach to managing such risks.

(Similar Question): Reference Paragraph L.16.1: This paragraph requires offerors to address risk factors associated with accomplishment of the contemplated contract.  Several of the areas of possible risk that are identified relate to items addressed in Subfactor B, Management Plan, but we can find no corresponding language in the evaluation factors for the Management Plan that address risk factors.  Please clarify how risk factors associated with the Management Plan will be evaluated.  

ANSWER:  The RFP will be revised to add the requirement for a risk assessment under Subfactor B of the Mission Suitability Proposal.  The risk assessment will address any programmatic risks relevant to the offeror’s accomplishment of the contract requirements.  This risk assessment will be separate from the risk assessment specified under Subfactor A – Representative Task Orders. 
4. Section L.17 Cost Volume(MAR 2011):  In the next to last paragraph on Page 96 the instruction states that “if a composite rate is comprised of 3 or more labor categories, the composite rate shall not contain any labor category with less than 30% of the anticipated effort”.  In the “Exhibit 2 Sample” Communications System Engineer title includes one  position in the compositing of three rates at 25% which appears to be inconsistent with the instruction cited. Is this an error or are we misinterpreting the instruction?

ANSWER:  Your interpretation of the instruction is correct. The sample has been corrected so that no percentage is less than 30%.

5. Government Pricing Model (GPM): Please confirm that the number of labor hours for CAD/Draftsman in Exhibit 1A (116,228 hours or 15% of total effort) is accurate. If so, please issue the appropriate Area Wage Determination since the percentage of all non-exempt labor will be in excess of 20%. Please note, CAD/Draftsman is a non-exempt labor category as defined by the Service Contract Act (#30061-30064).

(Similar Question): Reference Exhibit 1A: The GPM cites 116228 hours/year (over 60 FTEs) for CAD/Draftsman at the manufacturing site and 31114 hours/year (over 16 FTEs) for Chief Staff Engineers on-site. Question: Are these accurate representations of the current incumbent workforce?
ANSWER: The hours shown for each labor category in the GPM are the Government’s best projections based upon historical information.  We are reviewing this information to confirm its accuracy and will make any necessary adjustments in the final RFP.
6. L.16.2.Subfactor B: The staffing plan requires that the expected number of personnel to be identified “those to be transferred from within the offeror’s own organization” and L.17.(g), RTO SOURCE OF PERSONNEL: requires the offeror to show “ how many are available from within the company”.  Can either or both of these references be extended to include the entire proposed team and not just the prime company?

ANSWER: Exhibit 5 will be changed to require offerors to delineate source of personnel for the prime and all significant subcontractors at the contract level rather than at the RTO level. RFP section L.16.2 Subfactor B will be modified to reference this Exhibit and L.17(g) will be modified to remove this requirement as it currently relates to the RTO.  As appropriate, offerors may reference Exhibit 5, which is not subject to page count limitations, in the Mission Suitability proposal.
7. RTO 1 Question: The Government uses the word "prepare" to define RTO-1 tasks 1 (Technology Risk Mitigation Plan) and 3 (VLT Backup Plan), but the word "complete" to define task 2 (Trade Evaluation/Analysis Plan). This difference in wording can be interpreted in 3 different ways: 

· As a synonym for "prepare";

· As implying that a draft of the Trade Evaluation/Analysis Plan exists that is to be finalized by the contractor; or

· As implying that the work defined by a Trade Evaluation/Analysis Plan is to be performed under the task and the resulting reports attached to the Trade Evaluation and Analysis Plan as appendices. 


What is the Government's intention for the word "complete"?

Answer:  After evaluating the question, tasks 1 and 2 should be “complete”, and task 3 should be “prepare”.  This intent of the word “complete” is to emphasize that more than the generation of the document is required, as in the third definition above.   These changes will be made in the final RFP.
8. With regards to the RTOs, the incumbent contractor has an unfair advantage due to their detailed knowledge of Goddard technology, systems, tools, facilities, qualified parts list, and other detailed technical information. This advantage allows them to respond more accurately, with better assumptions, and, in the case of RTO #3, at lower cost through the use of GFE designs, systems, parts, labs, and other items. QUESTION: To level the playing field, would the government consider constraining the RTO responses to preclude the use of any GFE whatsoever beyond the RTO-specified GFE items listed in the RTO Basis of Estimate pricing instructions? This would be consistent with the RTO approach recently used on the METS II procurement.
ANSWER:  The offeror’s proposal must list all required equipment, facilities and resources necessary to implement the task solution.  Only that Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) or facilities specifically identified in the RTO as being available for use by the contractor may be incorporated into the offeror’s proposal.    Offerors’ RTO solutions should not assume the availability of additional GFE or facilities; any such assumptions will be considered invalid in the Government’s evaluation.  
9. Although the Government no longer requires offerors to propose indirect cost rate ceilings, may offerors, of their own volition, elect to propose ceilings?
ANSWER: In accordance with NASA FAR Supplement 1842.707, acceptance of indirect cost rate ceilings requires approval from the AA for Procurement. The Government cannot make any commitments that such a proposal will be approved.  If an offeror chooses to propose indirect cost rate ceilings as an alternate proposal, it must also submit bid rates. Otherwise the offeror runs the risk of not having a complete and acceptable proposal should the indirect cost ceilings be disapproved.
